
Hunger Mountain Cooperative exists to create and sustain 
a vibrant community of healthy individuals,

sustainable local food systems, 
and thriving cooperative commerce.

Meeting of the Council Community Room and Zoom Members and Staff Welcome To Participate: 
March 12, 2024 Facilitator: Carl Etnier https://zoom.us/j/97641441406?pwd=aDZGbHJtRnlETDY1VnZUOC9rWlVLdz09 

5:30pm Note Taker: Alison Goyette 1 646 558 8656 US 
Meeting ID: 976 4144 1406
Passcode: 282095

Agenda Page Presenter Goal
Duration in 

Minutes
Approximate 

Start Time
5:30 PM

1 Welcome: meeting groundrules, agenda review 2 Carl Etnier Welcome 0:05 5:30 PM
2 Cooperative Community Comments Carl Etnier Informational 0:05 5:35 PM
3 Consent Agenda: 2/13 Minutes, Equity Refund Requests 6 Carl Etnier Vote 0:05 5:40 PM
4 Financial Report: Q2 Statements Tim Wingate/Mary Mullally Presentation 0:10 5:45 PM
5 Monitoring Report: L5 Financial Condition & L7 Protection of Assets 9 Mary Mullally Vote 0:15 5:55 PM
6 GM Search Committee (includes an executive session) 31 Paul Ohlsen Informational 1:00 6:10 PM

Break 0:10 7:10 PM

7 2024 Committees 38 Eva Schectman/Carl Etnier Discussion 0:15 7:20 PM
8 Meeting Evaluation Carl Etnier Sharing 0:05 7:35 PM
9 Wrap-Up: Action Items, Calendar, Future Agenda Items 41 Carl Etnier Informational 0:05 7:40 PM

10 Council or Cooperative Community Comments Carl Etnier Informational 0:05 7:45 PM

Adjourn

https://zoom.us/j/97641441406?pwd=aDZGbHJtRnlETDY1VnZUOC9rWlVLdz09


Welcome to the March 2024 Hunger Mountain Council meeting!

To: Hunger Mountain Council
From: Carl Etnier, Council President
Date: March 6, 2024
Re: Packet overview for the March 12, 2024 meeting

I plan to be in the Conference Room at 5 on Tuesday, with food from the hot bar of the Co-op. I hope to 
see many of the Council members and member-owners in person. I also look forward to seeing the rest 
of the Council and interested member-owners who choose to participate via the Zoom meeting.

After our retreat and a special meeting to cover business we didn’t get to in our regular February 
meeting, we have an agenda that the Executive Committee designed in the expectation we can get 
through it in the time allotted on March 12. That doesn’t mean there won’t be other special meetings—
and hopefully more committee meetings, to give thoughtful attention to core Council functions—but 
the idea is the meetings won’t be for heldover business from this regular meeting.

Here are some of the choices we made to fit our necessary business into one meeting: 
• Background reading for the monitoring reports. Ideally, CFO Tim Wingate would provide us

with some real-time instruction on what we need to understand to evaluate the financial
monitoring reports. Rather than scheduled meeting time for this, there’s an article from
Cooperative Grocer* on how to understand income statements. Please read it with the same
care as the monitoring reports themselves.

• Dinner and Discussion update. This update is occurring strictly through the memo in the packet
and any extracurricular discussion you want to have. Eva Schectman has done a lot of work,
together with Lauren Antler, to refine some ideas from the February discussion of this item. The
theme of how the Co-op can support ongoing work to increase community resiliency in
Montpelier and the region is one that can attract a lot of interest. Please be sure to contact Eva if
you’re interested in helping make this happen. This is an excellent opportunity to be part of
expanding outreach to members.

As we have discussed, hiring an excellent new general manager (GM) is the most important function of 
the Council right now. To move that forward, our task at this meeting is to support our GM Search 
Committee in doing the job we asked them to do; see the separate document in the packet on the GM 
Search Committee item on this meeting’s agenda. 

In the near future, we’ll need to devise a process for us to use to evaluate the candidate or candidates 
that the committee sends to us. Committee chair Paul Ohlson has recommended that we devise the 
process before we see any candidates, so that the process design won’t be influenced by the candidates 
available. For that reason, we may need a special meeting before our regular April meeting to decide on 
the process. 

If the Council had a functioning Governance Committee now, we could delegate the design of a 
recommended process for the Council to use in the GM Search to it. If the Council agrees, we’ll soon 
have a functioning Governance Committee, and other committees that will allow us to harness the 
resources of the Council members and other member-owners to devote careful attention to the 
Council’s core functions. And once we get it in place, we won’t design the committee charters to 

Page 2



sunset, so that the next Council can begin its work with functioning committees. Eva has developed the 
work the Council did last year on streamlining committee structure, adapting it to the current needs of 
the Council expressed in the retreat and other recent discussions. That memo will be a good 
springboard for our discussion of committees. 

Beyond the March 12 meeting: 
• We have talked about the importance of our ground rules. Please be thinking about them in this

meeting and identifying, in your mind, what you think is working and what could be improved.
Please email any suggestions to the Executive Committee by the end of next week, so we can
consider them in a potential agenda item for April.

• A number of Council members have called for more meeting time, with time available to
discuss ideas at more length. The idea has gained support since the retreat. Rick Pereira and I
discussed ways to do this while respecting the time of Council members who are unavailable
for more meetings. The idea we discussed was to make the meetings optional; they would be
conducted as meetings if a quorum of the Council shows up, and if not, those who do show up
would simply have a discussion among themselves. We also discussed some topics. Please let
me know what you think of this idea, and email the Executive Committee and Rick with topics
you’d like to discuss.

• I’d like your ideas on increasing Council engagement with other members. We have our
meetings, our contact info listed on the website, random encounters in the store and elsewhere,
and the Council News column in the e-newsletter. What else would you like us to do? Please
email the Executive Committee with your ideas. (In the future, this is something a Member
Outreach/Engagement Committee could work on.)

And just a reminder: Council meetings are warned and open to members. Those meetings are the forum 
for discussing and deliberating Co-op business. Council members should not be participating in chat 
discussions with all the Zoom participants during meetings, as that constitutes a separate conversation 
outside the meeting. And email discussions among all Council members should be limited to planning 
meeting times and agendas. By following these guidelines, we can provide the transparency we’ve 
committed to. Also, please remember that personnel issues are to be discussed only in executive 
session. 

=====

*“Cooperative Grocer was published from 1985 to 2019, and its archives comprise a unique reservoir 
of professional insights, stories of food co-op innovation and success, and contributions by several 
national associations that have led this co-op sector.” That’s from the introduction to the archives, 
which are one of the many resources that our friends elsewhere in the co-op world make available to 
us; our membership in Columinate helps support resources like this. 

Page 3

https://archives.grocer.coop/articles/background-archives


To: Council, Co-op and Community Members, Co-op Staff and Vendors

From: Eva Schectman, Council President

Re: Council Ground Rules, Cooperative Community Comments and Council Meeting Ground Rules for Guests

October 2023

Council Ground Rules

To create a sense of community care, the Council will strive to:

o Listen to understand
o Remain curious
o Speak from our own experience
o Step up/Step Back (“share the air”)
o Avoid interrupting
o Practice kindness

Cooperative Community Comments Ground Rules

 To help the Council listen and engage with stakeholders and conduct Council business, the Council has
formed the following Cooperative Community Comments and business meeting ground rules for
guests:

 Cooperative Community Comments will have ten minutes on the agenda, at the beginning and the end
of the Council Meeting.

 Each speaker will have two minutes to speak maximum (each guest gets only one opportunity to
speak).

 Speakers will be called on in the order their electronic hand is raised on the Zoom call.
 Please include your full name and preferred pronouns on your screen profile and when introducing

yourself when you speak, for accurate minute taking.
 Guests in the queue who aren’t able to speak in the first comment period will be first in line for the

second comment period.
 Calling out before being asked to speak, speaking disrespectfully, personal attacks or interruptions by

guests will not be tolerated and guests may be dismissed from the meeting at the facilitator’s
discretion.

Council Business Meeting Ground Rules for Guests

 Guests will be muted during the Council business portion of the meeting.
 The chat function will stay on during the business portion of the meeting, however, disrespectful chat

(disparaging remarks, name calling, personal attacks) from guests will not be tolerated and guests may
be dismissed from the meeting at the facilitator’s discretion.

 The chat function will stay on during the Council break (about halfway through the meeting). All
participants will continue to be muted. The recording will be turned off during the break, as the break
is not part of Council business.

Page 4



 The Council will not be fielding questions from guests in the chat during the meeting. If guests have
questions or concerns, please either plan to stay and speak during the Cooperative Community
Comments at the end of the meeting or contact me after the meeting at evas@hungermountain.coop.

Page 5

mailto:evas@hungermountain.coop
Carl Etnier
current Council president Carl Etnier after the meeting at carle@hungermountain.coop. (Updated contact info March 6, 2024.)

Carl Etnier



Membership and Equity Monthly Report CY2022 - CY2024

2022 Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec YTD 2022
Total # of Members who joined 2022 44  33  43  24   69  36  No Report 112   69  59  64  40  593   
Members in good standing 9,684  ~9,700 9,790  9,838   11,079   11,108   Run 9,056   9,325   9,495  9,625  9,716  
As of Date 2/4/2022 3/4/2022 4/1/2022 5/2/2022 6/3/2022 6/27/2022 8/26/2022 10/3/2022 11/4/2022 12/5/2023 1/9/2023
Submitted Refund Request 4  6  6  6  8  4  -   15  3  5  2  3  62  
Total $ Submitted Refund Requests $555.00 $782.50 $750.00 $1,080.00 $465.00 $375.00 $1,795.00 $240.00 $230.00 $270.00 $380.00 $6,922.50

Est. -   
Total $ Paid Out/Donated ($180.00) ($555.00) ($782.50) ($600.00) ($1,080.00) ($585.00) ($375.00) ($1,795.00) $0.00 ($240.00) ($330.00) ($270.00) ($6,792.50)
Total $ Paid In $3,066.52 $1,604.98 $2,030.08 $1,800.00 $14,634.65 $14,738.59 $27,127.56 $7,588.12 $3,075.11 $4,039.67 $2,787.66 $1,950.00 $84,442.94

Equity Re-classsed to Income per By-Law ($26,208.97) ($26,208.97)
Equity Gain (Loss) 2022 $2,886.52 $1,049.98 $1,247.58 $1,200.00 $13,554.65 ($12,055.38) $26,752.56 $5,793.12 $3,075.11 $3,799.67 $2,457.66 $1,680.00 $51,441.47

YTD Rolling Equity Gain (Loss) $2,886.52 $3,936.50 $5,184.08 $6,384.08 $19,938.73 $7,883.35 $34,635.91 $40,429.03 $43,504.14 $47,303.81 $49,761.47 $51,441.47

2023 Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec YTD 2023
Total # of Members who joined 2023 40  54  26  30   35  51  No Report 91   31  47  41  33  479   
Members in good standing 9,786  9,876 9,920  9,973   10,019   7281* Run 9,306   9,371   9,570  9,637  9,708  
As of Date 2/3/2023 3/10/2023 3/31/2023 5/7/2023 6/5/2023 7/3/2023 9/2/2023 10/2/2023 11/6/2023 12/4/2023 1/2/2024
Submitted Refund Request 4  3  -  -   2  5  11   3  3  31  
Total $ Submitted Refund Requests $615.00 $225.00 $0.00 $0.00 $360.00 $575.00 $1,215.00 $315.00 $405.00 $3,710.00

Est. -   
Total $ Paid Out/Donated ($380.00) ($650.00) ($225.00) $0.00 $0.00 ($360.00) ($395.00) ($1,215.00) $0.00 ($315.00) $0.00 ($405.00) ($3,945.00)
Total $ Paid In $4,042.32 $2,043.04 $1,793.04 $1,519.58 $8,152.86 $14,656.43 $27,001.28 $6,924.91 $2,942.66 $3,529.20 $2,281.74 $2,624.01 $77,511.07

Equity Re-classsed to Income per By-Law ($22,372.00) $0.00
Equity Gain (Loss) 2023 $3,662.32 $1,393.04 $1,568.04 $1,519.58 $8,152.86 ($8,075.57) $26,606.28 $5,709.91 $2,942.66 $3,214.20 $2,281.74 $2,219.01 $51,194.07

YTD Rolling Equity Gain (Loss) $3,662.32 $5,055.36 $6,623.40 $8,142.98 $16,295.84 $8,220.27 $34,826.55 $40,536.46 $43,479.12 $46,693.32 $48,975.06 $51,194.07

2024 Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec YTD 204
Total # of Members who joined 2024 48  48   
Members in good standing 9,809  
As of Date 2/5/2024
Submitted Refund Request 5  5  
Total $ Submitted Refund Requests $765.00 $765.00

Est. -   
Total $ Paid Out/Donated ($765.00) ($765.00)
Total $ Paid In $3,380.15 $3,380.15

Equity Re-classsed to Income per By-Law $0.00
Equity Gain (Loss) 2024 $2,615.15 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,615.15

YTD Rolling Equity Gain (Loss) $2,615.15 $2,615.15 $2,615.15 $2,615.15 $2,615.15 $2,615.15 $2,615.15 $2,615.15 $2,615.15 $2,615.15 $2,615.15 $2,615.15

Page 6



Membership and Equity Monthly Report CY2022 - CY2024

 -

 20

 40

 60

 80

 100

 120

 Jan  Feb  Mar  Apr  May  Jun  Jul  Aug  Sep  Oct  Nov  Dec

Members Who Joined

Total # of Members who joined 2022

Total # of Members who joined 2023

Total # of Members who joined 2024

($15,000.00)

($10,000.00)

($5,000.00)

$0.00

$5,000.00

$10,000.00

$15,000.00

$20,000.00

$25,000.00

$30,000.00

 Jan  Feb  Mar  Apr  May  Jun  Jul  Aug  Sep  Oct  Nov  Dec

Net Equity Gain $ (Loss)

Equity Gain (Loss) 2022

Equity Gain (Loss) 2023

Equity Gain (Loss) 2024
Page 7



Did individual directors receive and read the written report in advance of the meeting 
and come to the meeting prepared to act?

Reschedule the item for the next meeting. See board 
process and / or board-gm relations policies.

Is the Operational Definition/ 
Interpretation reasonable?

Not accepted  
Board discusses Severity, 
Implications and Trends (SIT)

Is there adequate data to 
determine compliance/

accomplishment?

Does data demonstrate 
compliance/accomplishment?

Accepted as “in compliance with” 
or as “demonstrating 

accomplishment of a reasonable 
interpretation” of 

Policy XYZ.

Accepted with 
acknowledgement 
of non-compliance.

Decision Tree for Acting on Internal Monitoring Reports 
from the General Manager

Policy
reflection: 

Is it the 
policy we 

want?

Monitoring process is complete.
Document the Board’s decisions in 

the meeting minutes.

Monitoring Decision Tree Version 1.5, 9/06/07  Feedback welcome on this chart! 
E-mail MarkGoehring@cdsconsulting.coop  Fax: 802-246-2453

NO

YES
You are so 
awesome.

Have some cake!

Schedule time on 
a future agenda to 
discuss this policy.

Document the Board’s decisions in the meeting minutes.

Accepted with 
acknowledgement of 
non-compliance and

consequences (specify).

Policy
reflection
through-
out the 
entire 

process
...

Is it the 
policy we 

want?

Did the board decide 
to impose consequences 

on the GM?

NO

NO

Was there an acceptable 
plan, including a timeline 

for compliance/
accomplishment?

NO

Board considers 
a range of 
responses 
depending on 
SIT:

* Request
information

* Schedule
additional
follow-up
monitoring

* Increase
frequency of
monitoring

* Consequences
for the GM.

Not accepted with 
consequences 

(specify).

YES

YES

YES

YES

YES

NO

NO

Is the board prepared to 
proceed without any 

additional information?

YES

NO

YES

NO

Page 8



March 2024 Monitoring Report 
Prepared by Mary Mullally, Interim General Manager 

I am reporting compliance with all parts of the L5 and L7 policies, except L7.6 and L7.7 

I certify that the information contained in this report and attachments is true. 

Signed:  
Interim General Manager 

Note: Changes to the operational definitions/ interpretations since last L5/L7 report presented to 
the Council are indicated by italics/underline typeface.  

Attachments: Financial Statements for Quarter 2 Fiscal Year 2024 (unaudited) 

Available In Council Shared Document Folder/Upon Request: HMC Employee Handbook, 2022-
25 Labor Agreement, Co-op Safety Manual, FY2023 Reviewed Financial Statements, Insurance 
Broker Letter 2023 

Page 9



Policy Type: Executive Limitations   Policy Title: L5 Financial Condition  

Actual financial conditions and performance shall not place the Cooperative in fiscal jeopardy or 
leave it financially unprepared for future opportunities.  

Interpretation/Operational Definition, Short-Term:  
“Actual financial conditions and performance” mean as reported in internally prepared quarterly 
financial statements.  “Fiscal jeopardy” means violation of loan or contract agreements or failure 
to meet specific benchmarks while “financially unprepared for future opportunities” means 
failure to meet other benchmarks.  Specifically: 
 
Fiscal Jeopardy Benchmarks:  

• A CoScore of at least 40 for the previous four quarters from the most recent CoMetrics 
report of NCG food co-ops. The CoScore is a number used to indicate financial 
performance with particular emphasis on income statement metrics. The CoScore is 
calculated using a formula incorporating sales growth, earnings, expense control and 
Turns x Earns. 

• Current Ratio of at least 1.3 to indicate sufficient liquidity to meet short-term financial 
obligations. 

• Liabilities to Equity ratio of less than 4.0 to indicate sufficient solvency to meet long term 
obligations. 

 
Preparedness for Future Opportunities Benchmarks:  

• A CoScore of at least 50 from the most recent CoMetrics report.  
• Current Ratio of at least 1.5 to indicate ability to withstand reduction in liquidity. 
• Liabilities to Equity ratio of less than 2.0 to indicate ability to withstand reduction in 

solvency. 
 
 
 
Data: Co-op compliant with all benchmarks and there have been no violations of loan or contract 
agreements. I am reporting compliance.  
 

 Fiscal 
Jeopardy 
Benchmark 

Prepared-
ness 
Benchmark  

FY2024Q2  Compliant? 

CoScore  >40 >50 70 Yes 
Current Ratio  >1.30 >1.50 3.04 Yes 
Liabilities to Equity  <4.00 <2.00 0.43 Yes 
 
  

Page 10



Accordingly, the General Manager shall: 
 
L5.1 Not cause or allow the organization to incur indebtedness other than trade payables 
incurred in the ordinary course of doing business and/or leases for equipment required in the 
ordinary course of doing business, except as authorized by the Council.  
 
Operational Definition/Interpretation:  
Management may not incur new indebtedness without Council approval except as trade payables, 
ordinary credit lines, and leases for equipment necessary in the ordinary course of business.  
Compliance will be achieved if no new indebtedness appears on the balance sheet other than those 
described above.  The general manager will make a determination of compliance quarterly based on 
unaudited financial statements.   
 
Data:  
A “No” below indicates no new indebtedness as described above, and compliance.   

Q2-FY24 Q1-FY24 Q4-FY23 Q3-FY23 

 
NO NO NO NO 

 

Note: The Council approved the following liabilities, or potential liabilities, that are still active. Items 
1 and 2 are listed on the co-op’s balance sheet. FYI: The table below also compares interest rate and 
a current rate, Federal Home Loan Board 10 year plus 1.35%. 

 
Summary of Co-op Indebtedness- January 1, 2023 

Item   Date of 
Council/ 
Member 
approval 

Original 
Loan 
Amount 

Total Loan 
Amount* 
1/1/2024 

Interest 
Rate % 

FHLB 
10yr 
Interest 
Rate 
+1.35% 

1 Northfield 
Savings 
Bank 

February 
2022 

$500,000 $379,959 3.25% 6.23% 

2 NCGA – 
contingent 
liability 

November 
2006 

The Council approved the contingent 
liability that may arise from 
participation in the joint purchasing 
agreement. The current value is 
$32,145, which we treat as an asset. 

N/A  

*Note: includes current portion of the loan 
 
  
 
  

Page 11



Accordingly, the General Manager shall: 

L5.2 Not cause or allow circumstances that would result in the Cooperative being in violation of 
the terms of its loans, its tax liabilities, and/or its other contractual obligations.  

Operational Definition/Interpretation: 

A. Loans are anything listed as “Notes Payable” or “Long-Term Debt” on our Balance Sheet.
They are considered settled in a timely manner if we make payments according to the note as
evidenced our not receiving notice of a past due payment or letter of violation of loan
covenant.

B. Contractual obligations are agreements between the co-op and another party.   Contracts will
be honored by timely payment and if we do not receive notice that our payment is past due.

C. Co-op will remain current with all federal, state and local tax obligations, including state
unclaimed property rules. In consultation with our finance manager, the general manager will
make a statement as to our various obligations.

Data: 
A. Loans: We received no past due notices or letters in recent history.

B. Contracts: We paid all contract obligations according to terms this reporting period. We
received no notices of late payment for any contracts.

C. Taxes: According to the co-op’s finance and general managers, the co-op is current with all
tax obligations:
• All 941/940 (payroll tax withheld) deposits by Paylocity (payroll service) have been

verified and tied to the payroll.
• All City of Montpelier property and equipment taxes are paid and current.
• All State Withholding deposits have been made and Returns File by Paylocity.
• All Vermont Sales and Use, and Rooms and Meals are current and paid.

Page 12



Accordingly, the General Manager shall: 
 
L5.3 Not allow financial record keeping systems to be inadequate in detail, accuracy, or 
timeliness, or to be out of conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP).  
 

Operational Definition/Interpretation: 
The Manager will provide financial information such that the Council is informed of the co-op’s 
financial condition and able to fulfill its fiduciary duty.  Specifically, this means: 

1. Quarterly statements and financial condition monitoring reports are acceptable to the 
Council for prior year.  

2. A qualified third party from outside the organization will audit the co-op’s accounting 
systems at least once every two years to a level of depth necessary to provide an opinion 
regarding compliance with GAAP. Compliance will be achieved if the auditor provides a 
“clean” or unmodified opinion letter regarding conforming to GAAP. 

 
Data: 

1. The four prior financial statements were presented on time and received no significant 
criticisms internally or externally and the four prior L5 monitoring reports were accepted 
by the Council. 

2. The Co-op alternates between an audit and a review of financial statements each year. 
The FY2023 financial review found no material modifications that should be made for 
them to be in accordance with GAAP.  

 
 
 
 
Accordingly, the General Manager shall: 
 
L5.4 Not fail to report to the Council at least quarterly on financial condition, net income, sales 
growth, and member equity in the context of industry benchmarks and/or operating plan targets.   
 
Operational Definition/Interpretation: 
The manager must report quarterly on key metrics to allow the Council to monitor financial 
performance. Benchmarks have been established for both fiscal jeopardy and for preparedness for 
future opportunities. 
 
Data: 
See top level policy and L5.3 
 
 
 
  

Page 13



Policy Type: Executive Limitations  Policy Title: L7 Asset Protection 
 
Assets shall not be inadequately maintained, unnecessarily risked, or unprotected. 
 
Operational Definition/Interpretation: As trustees of our Cooperative’s assets, our 
management team must have in place policies, procedures, insurance and other measures 
necessary to avoid unnecessary losses or undue risk to our enterprise. Criteria for adequate 
protection of Co-op assets has been fully specified by the Council in the following sub-policies. 
Compliance will be achieved when compliance is established for the sub-policies, L7.1-L7.11 
 
Data: See below, L7.1 – 7.11 
 
 
 
  

Page 14



Accordingly the General Manager shall: 
 
L7.1 Not allow equipment, facilities and inventory to be inadequately insured against 
replacement, including coverage for any losses incurred due to business interruption. 
  
Operational Definition/Interpretation: The Co-op must maintain insurance adequate to protect 
against loss of assets and significant business interruption. Specifically: 
1. The Co-op will have in place insurance that will cover at least 90% of the replacement value 

of Co-op’s fixed assets and inventory.  Compliance will be demonstrated by a comparison of 
coverage with: 
• current book value, based on purchase value and accumulated depreciation 
• an estimated replacement value based on a recent valuation performed by a credible 

source. 
2. The Co-op must carry business interruption insurance sufficient to cover reasonable expenses 

for up to 6 months of closure. 
3. Additionally, insurance carriers must have a Financial Strength rating of “A” or better as 

determined by a third-party rating service. 
4. A reliable professional must assess the insurance coverage and find it to be adequate. 
 
Data:   
1. Compliance detailed in following table.   
Summary of Insurance Coverage- January 2024 

Item Book Value  Est. 
Replacement 
Value 

Amount of 
coverage 

Compliant? 

Inventory $626,812 $570,000 $2.8 million* Yes 
Machinery and Equipment Net 
of Depreciation (Includes 
Solar) 

$1,011,582 $1.25 million  $2.8 million* Yes 

Building and Site 
Improvements net of 
Depreciation 

$2,235,728 
 

$5.2 million 
 

$5.2 million Yes 

 
*Notes: Inventory and machinery and equipment covered by a business personal property policy 
with single maximum coverage limit for both. Patriot Insurance calculated replacement value last 
in early 2022 and an annual inflation factor will be applied annually until next valuation.  

2. The Co-op carries business income insurance up to $2.5 million through Patriot Insurance 
Company, which management judged to be adequate based on an analysis supported by our 
broker. 

3.The above insurance policies are covered by Patriot Insurance Company which received an 
“A” rating (excellent) from A.M. Best Rating, signifying compliance. 

4. Last fall, our insurance broker Brian Aitcheson of Dennis, Ricker and Brown assessed our 
insurance coverage and found it to be adequate. 

 
 

Page 15



Accordingly the General Manager shall: 
L7.2 Not allow unnecessary exposure of the organization, staff, or Council members to losses and 
claims of liability, and shall not fail to operate without reasonable and customary liability 
insurance against such losses and claims. 

Operational Definition / Interpretation: “Unnecessary exposure” is insurable risks that could 
have been prevented by knowledge of and adherence to labor laws and personnel regulations, 
safety procedures for staff and customers, and all employment policies and procedures of the co-
op. Compliance will be achieved by demonstrating that the co-op has written policies regarding 
personnel and safety issues; and adequate liability insurance, including director’s and officer’s 
liability.  

Specifically, compliance for this policy will be achieved by evidence that: 
1. Policies: The co-op has written policies regarding harassment, equal opportunity, progressive

discipline, and safety.
2. Insurance: Insurance coverage for general liability, directors and officers and fiduciary

liability is deemed sufficient by co-op’s insurance brokers. Additionally, insurance carriers
must have a financial strength rating of “A” or better as determined by A. M. Best Rating.

3. A system for protecting the co-op’s retirement benefits plan. Specifically, the system will
include identification and education of fiduciaries, a qualified third-party administrator, an
annual review of plan performance, and insurance to protect the fund.

Data: 
1. Policies: The co-op’s employee handbook details policies for harassment, equal opportunity

and progressive discipline and is scheduled for an update this fiscal year including a legal
review. The Safety Manual details all of the aspects of the co-op’s safety program.

2. Insurance: The co-op carries the specified coverage and was deemed customary and
reasonable by the co-op’s insurance broker, as stated in their November 2023 letter. We are in
the process of annual renewals for business liability and workers compensation policies.

Summary of Liability Insurance Coverage January 2024 

Type Individual 
Occurrence 

Aggregate   
Limit 

Carrier Rating Compliant? 

Page 16



General 
Liability 

$1,000,000 $2,000,000 Patriot A Yes 

Umbrella 
Liability 

$4,000,000 $4,000,000 Patriot A Yes 

Workers 
Compensation 

$500,000 $500,000 Memic A Yes 

Employment 
Practices 
Liability 

$1,000,000 $1,000,000 Cincinnati A+ Yes 

Director & 
Officer/ 
Fiduciary 

$1,000,000 $1,000,000 Cincinnati A+ Yes 

3. Retirement plan- The Co-op’s 401k plan meets each of the criteria: 
a. The Retirement Plan Committee, HR Manager and advisor (Hickok & Boardman) 

serve as fiduciaries for the Co-op’s retirement plan and have been informed of their 
duties.  We meet twice annually, document our meetings and actions thoroughly and 
ongoing education is provided as part of our review. 

b. The co-op contracts Acensus as its third-party administrator.  
c. The co-op holds fiduciary insurance coverage of $500,000 for the plan.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
Accordingly the General Manager shall: 
 
L7.3 Not allow purchasing practices that present opportunities for any staff member to exploit the 
co-op’s resources for personal gain, or to damage the co-op’s integrity or finances. 
 
Operational Definitions / Interpretation: 
Co-op assets are protected via a complete set of purchasing controls for all aspects of purchasing, 
including products for resale, supplies and capital items. Wholesale purchases are monitored such 
that inventory levels are consistent with sales growth and cash flow needs. Compliance will be 
achieved by evidence that: 
1. The existence of purchasing policies that address conflicts of interest and limit the amount of 

non-inventory purchases.   
2. No material violations have occurred. Material violations are those that, according to existing 

procedure, require an employee be placed on probation or terminated due to the violation, or 
are included in the annual audit.  

3. Monitoring of retail inventory by product category on a quarterly basis and the value of retail 
inventory (for individual categories and in the aggregate) must not increase more than 15% 
for the most recent 12-month period, unless as a result of planned business activity. 
 

Data: 

Page 17



1. The Co-op’s employment policies address conflicts of interest and gifts for personal use and 
limit the purchase of supplies and capital items according to employee’s position and level of 
responsibility. 

2. No material violations with respect to purchasing to report. 
3. A physical inventory count is taken quarterly and reported on a category basis. Managers and 

buyers review overall inventory levels and average annualized inventory turns regularly.  The 
total inventory of retail products (listed on balance sheet) increased slightly by $728 from end 
of Q2FY2023 to Q2FY2024.    

 
 
 
 
  

Page 18



Accordingly the General Manager shall: 
 
L7.4 Not allow receipt, processing, or disbursement of funds under controls insufficient to meet 
the standards of an auditor appointed by the Council, regardless of the frequency of actual audits 
scheduled by the Council. 
 
Operational Definitions / Interpretation: Financial controls acceptable to independent auditor. 
Compliance will be achieved by lack of significant criticism regarding receipt, processing or 
disbursement of funds in auditor’s notes or management letter. 
The co-op will have procedures for security of cash handling and will have no significant losses 
due to inadequate security, regardless of the findings of an auditor. Specifically:  
1. The co-op has written policies and procedures in place to protect against loss of cash due to 

employee theft or error.   
2. No significant cash-handling losses will occur during the period since the last reporting of L7. 

In judging the degree of significance, the General Manager will consider the amount of losses 
and the intentions of the people involved. 

3. The co-op will document all known losses, and respond appropriately to all significant losses, 
to include informing the Council President and/or the Council as a whole as appropriate. 

 
Data: 
(Review) There were no significant criticisms or material deficiencies in FY2023 financial 
review.  
 
(Procedures/Losses) 

1. Front End Department has training materials and cash accountability policy that describes 
co-op’s policies regarding cash handling, available upon request.  Systems for tracking 
cashier overages/shortages and ensuring accountability exist. The Finance department 
reconciles daily deposits.  

2. There were no significant cash-handling losses of funds in the past quarter.  
3. Co-op documents losses daily through cashier declarations which are independently 

verified by depositor and resulting over-short reports. Losses due to theft and/or policy 
violation are documented through the co-op’s personnel records. 

4. We recently updated our gift card policy and trained the Front-End employees on this 
updated information.  

 
 
  

Page 19



Accordingly the General Manager shall: 
 
L7.5 Not operate the organization with inadequate security that unnecessarily risks theft, loss, or 
damage to property, building, and equipment. 

Operational Definitions/Interpretation: Co-op must have in place written policies, systems and 
procedures that reasonably minimize the risk to co-op property.  Compliance will be achieved by 
demonstration that co-op has: 
1. Written policies for prevention of shoplifting and backroom theft 
2. A security alarm system  
3. A security camera system   
4. Basic fire prevention and emergency response policies and procedures 
5. No material losses due to theft or damage from the past quarter. 
 
Data: 
1. (Theft policies) The co-op’s employment policies contain sections that cover store security, 

shoplifting, robberies, and employee purchases.  Receiving department policies address 
backroom theft liability, including potential vendor theft.    

2. (Security alarm system) The co-op employs a security alarm system for protection against 
fire, refrigeration failure and break-ins. 

3. (Security camera system) We also employ a digital security camera system (which was 
updated this year and currently 43 cameras) which monitors the front end and deli cash 
registers, the exit/entrances, our back room and the cash room, along with the rest of the 
building.  

4. (Fire prevention and response) The co-op’s safety manual describes fire prevention, response 
and evacuation procedures; all employees regularly receive retraining in fire response and 
evacuation. Co-op fire detection and sprinkler systems up to code and tested annually. The 
MFD reviewed our evacuation procedure this year and plans to observe a fire drill and 
provide feedback.  

5. (Losses) There are no material losses to report. 
 
  

Page 20



Accordingly the General Manager shall: 

L7.6 Not fail to utilize current best practices to secure all deposits against any bank loss, and not 
fail to protect any invested cash by accepting only the lowest reasonable risk of loss. 

Operational Definitions/Interpretation: The co-op’s funds should be fully insured with limited 
exceptions. Compliance will be achieved by evidence that all cash holdings and investments are 
less than $250,000 (FDIC limit); or a) in a single primary checking account that contains less than 
three weeks of average sales in the previous two quarters; b) invested in or backed by Treasury 
securities; or c) are Council-approved investments in other cooperatives and mission related 
funds.   

Data: All accounts below thresholds and I am reporting compliance. 
Summary of Co-op Deposits and Investments January 1, 2024     

Institution Amount 
Deposited 

Amount 
Insured 

Notes Compliant? 

NSB $1,251,640 $250,000 <$1,670,920(3 weeks of 
average sales)  

Yes 

TD BankNorth $263,101 $250,000 FDIC- Insured No 

M&T $47,854 $250,000 FDIC Yes 

Community 
National 

$221,775 $250,000 FDIC Yes 

VSECU $103,751 $250,000 NCUA Yes 

Treasury 
Securities 

$4,213,844 $0 Yes 

Co-op Fund of 
Northeast 

$145,140 $0 Council Approved Jan 
04 

Yes 

Investments in 
various Co-ops 

$41,292 $0 Council approved Yes 

Equity in 
various Co-ops 

$9,271  $0 Per investment policy  Yes 

VT Comm. 
Fund 

$105,787 $0 Council Approval Oct 
2018, Renewed 2023 

Yes 

Note: Cash balance on balance sheet includes cash in drawer not listed in table and does not 
include CFNE and HELP account. “Investments in co-ops” does not include investments in NCG, 
Fedco and Frontier which are required in order to do business with those co-ops. 

Compliance update: TD BankNorth account is a new account connected to our cash recycler. As 
we were getting accustomed to the deposit timing, the balance exceeded our insured limit for a 
day. We have remedied this by completing transfers earlier in the week and are looking into 
sweep options.  

Page 21



Accordingly, the General Manager shall: 
 
L7.7 Not fail to secure data; intellectual property; files; and staff, member-owner, and customer 
personal information against loss, theft, or damage. 
 
Operational Definitions/Interpretation: Sensitive co-op information is provided adequate 
protection. Specifically: 
 

1. Sensitive paper records will be kept in locked files.  
2. Member-owner contact and purchasing information is secure. 
3. Electronic records will be regularly backed-up.  
4. Access to sensitive co-op information will be determined and restricted by job 

description.  
5. Precautions will be in place to protect key intellectual property. 
6. Credit/debit transaction will be PCI (Payment Card Industry) compliant.  
7. A training program for internet security awareness is provided to all key employees. 
8. There will be no reports of failure to protect data in the past year.  

 
 
Data:  

1. Personnel files and other sensitive documents are stored in locked file cabinets with keys 
provided to designated employees. 

2. Individual Member data available to limited staff and never provided to outside parties. 
In addition to basic contact information, we are now collecting member birthdates but not 
social security numbers.  

3. Electronic server data are backed up nightly to external hard drives and data cartridges 
which are stored offsite for up to two weeks. Some data is also backed up to the cloud. 

4. Personnel information limited to general manager and human resources staff with some 
access provided to department managers, payroll staff and union officers upon request. 
Sensitive financial documents available to only senior finance department staff and the 
general manager. 

5. We judge that the co-op has no intellectual property considered to be at risk. 
6. The co-op is fully PCI-compliant. 
7. The co-op uses the Ninjio service to train employees in detection of email threats which 

includes regular required trainings for anyone with a hunger mountain coop email.  
8. There have been reports of failure to protect data over the past year.  

 
 
Compliance update: There have been reports of failure to protect personnel data over the past 
year, which have been reported to the Council on multiple occasions. These are the steps we have 
taken to come back into compliance:  
 

a. Transition to electronic storage of personnel data is underway when feasible.  

b. In response to the storage incidents of unsecured personnel files, we have 
retrained the staff involved.  

c. We have also added a secondary check by the MOD to also confirm that the 
personnel file cabinets are locked.  

d.  We are evaluating the HR office space for improved privacy. 

Page 22



e. The management team has received training on the protection of PII (Personal 
Identifiable Information)  

 

 

Page 23



Accordingly, the General Manager shall: 

L7.8 Not fail to exercise due diligence in negotiating and executing contracts with third parties 
and employees. 

Operational Definitions/Interpretation: Due diligence will mitigate risk to the Co-op assets 
when entering into contracts, especially those valued at greater than $5000 per annum.  Our 
investigation and evaluation may include management team, legal counsel, industry experts, co-
op peers and consultants and others as necessary. Compliance will be demonstrated by 
documentation of process and key factors involved in contract decision-making. 

Data: The Co-op does perform due diligence in researching options prior to entering contracts 
typically including competitive bidding and legal review when appropriate.  The following table 
provides basic information about the process and people involved for a sample of the Co-op’s 
more significant current contracts: 

Contract:        End Date:         Involved: 
Labor Agreement: UE 
255 

June 2025 Employee Union, Management Team, Legal 
Counsel, Council-ratified, considered budgets, 
industry data, more 

Purchasing Contract: 
UNFI 

June 2024 Negotiated on our behalf by NCG with extensive 
legal review, cost plus pricing, comparisons to 
other purchasing agreements, evaluation of other 
potential suppliers, wholesale costs auditable 

Payroll Services: 
Paylocity 

No End Date, 
60 days’ 
notice 

Negotiated based on previous rates, legal review 

Inventory Services: 
RGIS-WIS 

No End Date, 
30 days’ 
notice 

15+ year relationship with virtually only service 
provider in area 

Linen Service: Foley 
Services 

Feb. 2024 Renewal, considered alternative bids with review 
by NCG staff 

Maintenance Agreement: 
New England Air 
Systems  

Feb. 2025 Renewal, considered alternative providers, 
references from other co-ops, Co-op vendor for 
over 13 years 

CALs/Acumatica August 2025 ERP Account SaaS software was researched and 
converted to the new system in the fall of 2022. 
Server and software reaching end of life. Long-
term relationship with CAL. 

ECRS License and 
Maintenance Contract 

June 2024 Competitive Bid, Includes Maintenance & 
Support on POS Catapult plus Gold Service 
Contract on Hardware, annual auto-renewal with 
opt-out 

Parking: Stonecutters 
Way City of Montpelier 

Renews every 
6 months 

Discount from typical city rates 

Parking- Granite/Barre 
St. Lot: Downstreet 
Housing 

Nov. 2024 Negotiated based on city rates, legal review 

Page 24



Accordingly, the General Manager shall: 
 
L7.9 Not fail to protect the Co-op’s public image and brand identity. 
 
Operational Definitions/Interpretation: The co-op will in practice and in results maintain its 
position as a trusted agent for our member-owners and the public. Evidence of this trust will be 
maintenance of our membership and customer base. Specifically: 
1. The co-op will have in place systems for maintaining brand and public image including an 

emergency communications response plan.  
 

2. Customer satisfaction will not decrease significantly as measured by average satisfaction rate 
in the annual shopper survey. 
 

3. In the past six months, there will have been more positive stories than negative stories and 
letters about our co-op in local print media outlets. 
 

4. At least 10 visible community partnerships and sponsorships tied to cooperative values. 
 
Data:  
1. The co-op maintains a manual detailing brand standards (color, design, etc.) that is used by 

marketing staff to maintain consistency and effectiveness in all of our printed materials; this 
manual was updated in 2023 to reflect new standards. The co-op also maintains a crisis 
response communication plan. 

 
2. In the 2023 shopper survey, 100% of satisfaction categories received an average rating of 

“good” or better (>3.5 on 5-point scale). The average rating of all satisfaction categories was 
4.37. Shoppers gave prices an average rating of 3.1. We are currently conducting the 2024 
Shopper Survey. 

 
3. During December 2023 – February 2024, there were at least 19 HMC mentions in local 

media stories. Seven of those were related to the sexual harassment issue, nine were about the 
fire, one was about hiring the interim leadership, one was about council elections and one was 
to note we were voted best locally owned grocery store.  Outlets included Montpelier Bridge, 
Times Argus, Seven Days, and WDEV.  

 
4. During August 2023 – February 2024, the Co-op maintained eleven significant sponsorship 

relationships, including two Montpelier Parks and Recreation Department Parkapalooza 
shows, being a presenting sponsor of the Taste of Montpelier food festival, VSECU’s Point to 
Point, free horse-drawn carriage rides in Downtown Montpelier, the Co-op’s logo on team 
warm-up shirts and shorts for Montpelier Recreation Department’s 3rd – 5th grade basketball 
teams, Capstone Community Action’s Fuel Your Neighbor Campaign, 12th Night 
Celebration presented by Cabot Arts, a three-month long naturalist journey series hosted by 
the North Branch Nature Center, and Good Beginnings Winter Wellness series. 

 
 
 
 
Accordingly the General Manager shall: 
 

Page 25



L7.10 Not fail to operate with a clear policy for employees to report suspected fraud to the 
Council President or Treasurer. 

Operational Definitions/Interpretation: The co-op must have written employee policy that 
clearly communicates how an employee can notify suspected fraud to the President or Treasurer.  

Data: Excerpt from Section 19 of co-op employment policies: “Employees may report 
suspected fraud to the Council President or the Council Treasurer.  All information will be treated 
confidentially and there will be no retaliation against the reporter”. This policy was recently 
included in the daily staff update, shared on a staff communication screen and will be included in 
the spring 2024 all-staff training. In 2022, the Council adopted a procedure for responding to 
concerns about suspected fraud. 

Accordingly the General Manager shall: 

L7.11 Not allow the Co-op to operate without contingency plans for disruption to operations 
from force majeure. 

Operational Definitions/Interpretation: The co-op must have written policies and procedures 
for responding to pandemics, fire, flood, other disasters or situations requiring emergency 
response.   

Data: The Co-op has a detailed pandemic plan last updated in 2022. The co-op’s safety manual 
details the co-op’s policies regarding fire, flood, earthquake and other unplanned emergencies. 
Every employee is supplied with a copy of the manual and receives training in key policies during 
new employee orientation and regularly store-wide safety trainings. The co-op also has written 
procedures for the handling of power and water outages and refrigeration failure. 

Page 26



16  C O O P E R A T I v E  G R O C E R  •  j A N u A R y – F E b R u A R y  2 0 1 2

Summary: our previous article was on the 
balance sheet, and after our review below of 
the income statement, a subsequent install-
ment will cover internal controls and cash 
management. Our vision for this series is 
to present a basic financial review and best 
practices for co-ops.

Accounting best practices are derived 
from GAAP (Generally Accepted Accounting 
Principles), and many involve tax laws and 
requirements. Our review here is primar-
ily concerned with presenting consistent, 
accurate information for interpretation and 
not with the interpretation of those amounts. 
A qualified accountant is an important 
resource in ensuring that the numbers you 
have on your financial statements are accu-
rate and follow tax and legal requirements. 
If you are not certain what a specific finan-
cial statement entry item is, how to calculate 
it, or where to include it, please don’t guess.

f
or many people, the income 
statement (also called profit 
and loss statement) is the only 
financial statement that they 
ever see or review. While it 

is an important indicator of financial 
performance and health, it does not tell 
the entire story by itself. Together and 
over time, the income statement, bal-
ance sheet, and cash-flow statement (all 
properly constructed), along with their 
comparative ratios, can provide you with 
the information you need to tell the story 
of your cooperative business and to make 
decisions that will guide it now and in the 
future. 

In this article, we discuss income 
statement presentation for both internal 
and external users, including some tax con-
siderations. Over the years, food co-ops have 
worked together to develop a common under-
standing of what is included in expense items 
and other financial statement categories in 
order to allow for better comparisons between 
co-ops. What follows here are overall consider-
ations, items for inclusion in your income state-
ment, definitions, and tax considerations. 

definition and considerations
The income statement summarizes the income 
and expenses for a specified period of time. The 
order and composition of items included on the 
income statement is not strictly standardized. 
However, the first line is always sales, followed 
by cost of goods sold, and then gross margin. 
What follows after that are expenses (with a 
subtotal of income from operations), other 

income and expenses, income taxes, and 
finally net income (otherwise referred to 
as “the bottom line”). 

use unique chart of accounts num-
bers. A very important best practice in a 
good accounting system is the assign-

ment of unique chart of account numbers to 
each account. Accounts are generally created 
to allow for the most detailed level that will 
be needed for management reporting and 
decision-making. For external reporting, these 
accounts should be summarized. The account 
numbers must be assigned to meet all of the 
reporting needs for various users. 

OpeRaTinG
exceLLence

MY COOPERATIVE 
statement of InCome 

Year ended June 30, 2012

  amount Percent 
saLes ReVenUe   
 sales  $19,970,000   99.85  
 nonmember markup  40,000   0.20  
 senior discount  (10,000)  (0.05)

 Gross sales  20,000,000   100.00 

 Cost of goods sold  (12,500,000)  (62.50)

 Gross margin  7,500,000   37.50 

oPeRatInG eXPenses  

 Personnel  4,900,000   24.50  
 occupancy  600,000   3.00  
 operating expenses  600,000   3.00  
 Depreciation  200,000   1.00  
 administrative  200,000   1.00  
 Board/Governance  75,000   0.38  
 Promotions/marketing  250,000   1.25 

total operating expenses  6,825,000   34.13 

Income from operations  675,000   3.37  

otHeR InCome (eXPense)  

 other income  75,000   0.38  
 Interest expense  (130,000)  (0.65) 
 other expense  (40,000)  (0.20)

 total other income (expense)  (95,000)  (0.47)

Income before income taxes  580,000   2.90 

Provision for income taxes  (50,000)  (0.25)

net income  $530,000   2.65 

il
l

U
S

T
r

A
T

iO
N

S
 b

Y
 M

E
l

E
C

K
 D

A
v

iS

Accounting Best Practices: 
Nurturing Your Income Statement

by bRuCE mAyER,  PEG NOLAN AND STEvE wOLFE 

Page 27



C O O P E R A T I v E  G R O C E R  •  j A N u A R y – F E b R u A R y  2 0 1 2   17

Note: Some basic software allows accounts 
to be assigned by name only—a practice that 
should be avoided. Using a numbered chart of 
accounts allows for more efficient and effec-
tive accounting practices to be put in place. 
Using a minimum of five digits for each account 
number will enable you to add summary detail 
accounts as needed over time.

Who is the audience? In preparing an 
income statement, understanding who will be 
using it and for what purpose will assist you 
in determining the level of detail to include. 
Operational statements for staff will most likely 
include much more line-item detail than what 
you would summarize for your board of direc-
tors or an external audience such as a bank or 
for your annual report. If an item is useful for 
managing better financial performance and 
controlling costs, it should be considered for 
inclusion in internal reports.

Monthly, quarterly, annual 
How often should we produce an income 
statement? 

Monthly: For co-op managers, income 
statements are normally produced monthly to 
ensure expense review and control. These state-
ments include detailed line items and are often 
produced by department as well. Since most 
co-ops only conduct complete store invento-
ries on a quarterly basis, it will be necessary to 
make an inventory adjustment for the monthly 
statements. (Please ask if you do not know how 
to make this adjustment.)

Quarterly: Income statements are gener-
ally produced for the staff and board with the 
agreed-upon level of detail each of them needs 
in order to do their respective jobs. 

annually: Income statements for outside 
users are normally generated on an annual basis 
and may be reviewed or audited by an outside 
accounting firm. The net income before taxes 
from your annual income statement is also the 
starting point for determining your federal and 
state tax obligations. 

Are additional columns required? A good 
income statement lets you see at a glance how 
you performed compared to a benchmark. The 
most common comparison column compares 
the current period to last year for the same 
period with an additional column showing 
the variance between the two. You might also 
compare the current period to budget or to a 
year-to-date income statement. 

best practice: Include variance columns as 
well as a column of percentages next to each 
expense category or line item included in the 
income statement that shows the percent-
age that item is of gross sales. Food co-op 
operational budgets/income statements are 

built, managed, and monitored using these 
percentages.

presentation of the financial 
statements
Gross Sales: Sales are presented first. This con-
sists of sales of your primary products, generally 
groceries. The sales number required by GAAP 
is the sales after regularly imposed markups or 
discounts are applied. So if you charge nonown-
ers 5 percent more, the GAAP sales total is shelf 
price plus that markup. And if you give owners a 
5 percent discount on every purchase, the GAAP 
sales total is shelf price less that discount. The 
most meaningful presentation often is to start 
with sales before discounts or markups and then 
subtract or add those to get to a net sales num-
ber that represents the GAAP sales. 

One way to think of this is that your shelf 
price is not your true sales number if you 
charge everyone a price different from that 
shelf price. Your sales number is what you are 
regularly charging everyone. Sales should, how-
ever, not reflect the net after staff or working 
volunteer discounts. Those discounts are part 
of your personnel costs and should be classified 
with those expenses. 

cost of Goods Sold: Cost of goods sold 
(COGS) is next, just below sales. COGS 
includes the prices paid for goods, including 
any and all vendor costs or allowances such 
as: freight costs, volume discounts, packaging, 
and any other costs or allowances that vendors 

attach to products you are selling. An accurate 
cost of goods sold report requires that an accu-
rate inventory be taken at the beginning and 
ending of the income statement period. 

Gross Margin: The gross margin is the 
subtotal of sales less COGS. It is also called 
the gross profit. Food co-ops record sales by 
department (such as produce and deli), and 
each department has its own target gross mar-
gin. In order to compute department margins 
accurately, you must ensure that your chart of 
accounts aligns department line items in each 
of three areas: sales, purchases, and inventory. 
So, if you want to calculate margins in 15 differ-
ent departments, each with several subdepart-
ments, you must have 15 account numbers with 
their subdepartments in each of those areas. 

In addition, bookkeeping practices and 
operational systems must support the accurate 
recording of entries in each of those areas to 
their appropriate department. Register sales 
have to be assigned to the correct department, 
invoices must be coded to the correct depart-
ment, and inventory counts must be attributed 
to the correct department. Maintenance of 
margin systems and importantly, price-update 
systems, are imperative for achieving expected 
margins. 

expenses
Below the gross margin subtotal are the 
expenses. These will include all of the expenses 
for running your store. The presentation may 

Accrual or Cash Accounting (accrual, please) 
A fundamental choice that your cooperative business must make is whether you will be presenting 
the income statement on a cash basis or accrual basis. For presentation to a board of directors, a 
summary for members, or for outside users such as banks, it is assumed you are using GAAP num-
bers. Comparability between entities and to industry standards requires using the same basis, and 
that is generally GAAP. Since GAAP financial statements are always accrual, it is a best practice to 
use accrual accounting.

Accrual accounting recognizes transactions when income is earned or when an expense is 
incurred regardless of when cash is actually received or a bill is paid. For example, if your fiscal 
quarter ends on a Thursday, you would accrue the invoices for any products received through that 
day (expense them in that quarter), though they haven’t been paid yet. wages and benefits for 
staff who worked through that day should also be expensed in that quarter, even if your payroll 
period doesn’t end until the following Sunday.

Under cash accounting, the revenues from a transaction are not recognized until cash has been 
received, and expenses are posted only when they are paid. Cash income statements show just 
the effect of income received and expenses paid within the stated period, often modified to 
include some accrual adjustments such as depreciation and inventory. 

Page 28



18  C O O P E R A T I v E  G R O C E R  •  j A N u A R y – F E b R u A R y  2 0 1 2

February 6-7, 2012 
Bottom Line Training
A 2-day seminar focused on develop-
ing training that positively impacts your 
bottom lines. Experience the power of  
clear expectations!

February 13-14, 2012
Fun, Flavorful Finance
A 2-day seminar on Open Book Manage-
ment–get everyone in your organization 
not just excited about, but contributing 
directly to, your co-op’s financial success.

Sharing Zingerman’s Unique Approach to Business    734.930.1919    www.zingtrain.com    zingtrain@zingermans.com

Sign up 
a month in advance  

for a $100 Early Bird Discount

NCGA members get 10% OFF 
everything, all the time,  

even seminars!

You’ve just come out of a season of showing
your customers the best you have to offer.
Now, join us for a ZingTrain seminar to find out  
how to be the best you can be!

OpeRaTinG
exceLLence

be highly summarized, sometimes just one 
line, or it may be disaggregated into as many cat-
egories as you like. We will discuss a summary 
presentation of some common lines. The details 
of accounts that constitute each summary line 
may be shown in an internal report but would 
generally not be shown to outside readers.

personnel: The first expense category is 
typically personnel, in part because it is the 
largest expense after cost of goods sold. Person-
nel expenses include all costs of staff: wages, 
bonuses, paid time off, employment/payroll 
taxes, benefits, workers’ com- 
pensation insurance, worker  
sales discounts,  
recruiting, and training. 

A best practice: Staff benefits should be 
expensed as they accrue. Many co-ops have a 
paid time off policy (PTO) where a staff person 
accrues PTO according to a formula that is 
based on hours paid. If a full-time employee 
accrues one week of PTO per quarter (13 
weeks), this expense should appear on your 
quarterly income statement as an accrued bene-
fit. When that person takes a vacation, it will be 
deducted from that accrued benefits line item. 

Occupancy is all of the costs of leasing or 
owning your space. It includes rent, insurance, 
real estate taxes, repairs, maintenance, and 
utilities, but typically not interest, which is pr- 
                esented separately. Two best practices:  
                   Real estate taxes should be  

expensed monthly (one-twelfth of the esti-
mated total), even though they are paid once 
or twice annually. Building depreciation can be 
included here, but it is a better practice to list it 
as a part of Depreciation (below.)

Operating expenses: These include bank 
fees, technology, vehicles, supplies, and small 
equipment (equipment that you can expense 
rather than depreciate). 

Depreciation may be presented as part of 
operating expenses or separately. For our 
purposes, it incorporates all depreciation, 
including building depreciation (if you own 
your building.) It is a noncash expense and 
is normally calculated by your accountant to 
ensure that you are depreciating items properly. 
Best practice: For your income statements, you 
should apportion this expense monthly instead 
of once a year. 

Administrative expenses include office supplies, 
accounting, professional services, dues, and 
subscriptions.  

Board or governance expenses are often pre-
sented separately and reflect that the board has 
its own budget. These are typically direct board 
costs (such as meeting expenses and board pro-
fessional services), as well as linkage costs such 
as owner meetings or mailings. 

Promotions or marketing expenses include adver-
tising, marketing consultants, contributions, 
newsletters, and merchandising.

income from operations: Expenses are 
normally subtotaled and then subtracted from 
the gross margin to show the income from 
operations. Staff often use this number and/
or EBITDA (Earnings Before Interest, Taxes, 
Depreciation, Amortization) as a metric that 
reflects the profitability of store operations.

“Other” lines
Other income and expenses will normally be 
any income earned or expenses incurred that 
are outside of your day-to-day operations. 

Patronage dividends received from other 

Taxable Income 
There are several items that are not normally shown on the income statement, but we wanted to 
note two. The first is patronage dividends (that you give to your owners). GAAP does not specify 
that patronage dividends must be a deduction from income nor that they must be a direct reduc-
tion of retained earnings. In a retail food co-op, showing patronage dividends separately from 
the income statement is logical as a deduction from retained earnings. 

Patronage dividends are typically not all paid in cash, and the retained portion may be held 
indefinitely. The logic of not deducting patronage dividends may best be illustrated by example. 
If a co-op earns a 3 percent net income it is generally considered to be doing well. If it pays half 
of that in patronage dividends and deducts those in calculating net income it will show a 1.5 per-
cent net income. If only 20 percent of that patronage dividend is paid in cash the only cash cost 
in the near term is 20 percent of 1.5 percent—or just 0.3 percent of sales. If an outside reader, 
such as a bank, sees a 1.5% net income it may make a very different judgment about lending 
than if it saw a 3% net income. 

Since patronage dividends are a discretionary decision and often not paid fully in cash,19 
it makes sense to show them as an equity transaction similar to preferred share dividends. 
regardless of the income statement treatment, patronage dividends are deductible in calculating 
taxable net income if the IrS’s rules are followed.

The second item not normally shown on the income statement, if your co-op has them, is 
 dividends paid on preferred shares. These dividends are a return on invested equity and are a 
direct reduction of retained earnings. These preferred share dividends are also not deductible in 
calculating taxable income.

Page 29



C O O P E R A T I v E  G R O C E R  •  j A N u A R y – F E b R u A R y  2 0 1 2   19

with tea and coffee 
supplies made from 

ceramic, stainless steel, 
glass, BPA-free and 

recycled plastic

Warm Up Your Winter…

cooperatives are typically classified under 
“Other income and expenses” since they are at 
most annual in frequency.* 

Interest expense is typically 
shown with other expense 
since it is considered a 
cost of financing and not 
a direct expense related 
to your operations. Costs 
of expansions or reloca-
tions are also typically 
shown in other expenses 
to highlight the costs and 

to indicate that they are not a regular part of 
operations. 

Other income generally includes interest 
income, gain or loss on sale of fixed assets, rent 
income, newsletter advertising, and fees for 
fieldtrips or workshops. Other income would 
also include any administrative charges related 
to member equity installments, as well as mem-
bership dues, if applicable.

Other income and expenses are normally 
subtotaled and subtracted from operating 
income to generate the net income before 
income taxes. 

income taxes and net 
income
Income taxes will include fed-
eral, state, and local income and 
franchise taxes. It will also 
include any adjust-
ments for deferred 
taxes. 

net income: the total of taxes is then sub-
tracted from your net income before income 
taxes to show your net income. 

Please note: your co-op can have a positive 
net income and still not have enough cash to 
survive. Watch for our next article on cash man-
agement and internal controls! ■Fiscal Year End  

Your co-op has a date when the fiscal year ends for book and for tax-reporting purposes. This 
may be either on a 52/53-week year or just at a month’s end. The most common year ends for 
food co-ops are either June or December. Year ends are typically chosen for business reasons 
with the most common having the year close just after the strongest quarter. The 52/53-week 
year allows you to close your periods on the same day of the week instead of according to the 
calendar. In general, this can aid in the comparability of year-to-year and other comparisons.  

Note: Changing the year end requires obtaining permission from the Internal revenue Service, 
which is not difficult but follows a strict set of rules. Do this with your accountant.

* There is a valid argument that patronage divi-
dends from other co-ops should be netted against 
the expenses originally incurred. The netting might 
typically be to COGS or to membership dues. This 
is in accordance with the idea that patronage 
dividends are a refund of an “overcharge” by the 
cooperative. A policy on classifying patronage from 
each cooperative vendor could be made based on 
an analysis of each relationship. These decisions 
are often made with your accountant.

Page 30



General Manager Search Committee Decisions

To: Hunger Mountain Council
From: Carl Etnier, Council President
Date: March 6, 2024
Re: General Manager (GM) Search Committee Decisions for March 12, 2024

As we have discussed, hiring an excellent new general manager (GM) is the most important function of 
the Council right now. To move that forward, our task at this meeting is to support our GM Search 
Committee in doing the job we asked them to do.

Search Committee Chair Paul Ohlson reports the active committee members have gelled into a team 
that works well together, and he is looking for a mandate from the Council to continue working with 
this team. He also seeks clarification about how many candidates the search committee is to submit to 
the Council for its consideration; numbers from one to three have been discussed.

Two motions would satisfy this request:
1) A motion to affirm that the GM Search Committee’s membership consist of its five active members,
representing member-owners, staff employees, management employees, and the Council.
2) A motion to ask the search committee to submit up to X (e.g., two or three) candidates to the
Council, with the acknowledgement that the availability of promising candidates may lead to serial
submission of candidates, rather than a candidate pool.

The committee is also looking for Council approval of the position profile for the GM position. The job 
description for a general manager is following Council policies. A concise "position profile" is what is 
posted publicly to give an initial idea of what the job is about; it is not the language that will be used in 
the contract. The position profile is based on the Council’s L policies for the general manager and also 
informed by the results of the surveys about what qualities are needed now in a GM; it has been 
reviewed by senior management for ground truthing.

Background

Timeline
Here is an overview of the events leading up to the first meeting of the GM Search Committee. Note 
that it took six months from the time Kari resigned to the first meeting of the GM Search Committee.

• August 3, 2023 Kari Bradley announces his resignation after 19 years as general manager
• September 1, 2023 Kari Bradley's resignation takes effect; Mary Mullally takes over as interim

General Manager (IGM). The Council contracted with Mary to serve as IGM through the end of
the year, by which time it was expected that a new GM would be in place. Wynston Estes, a 23-
year veteran of Willy Street Co-op in Madison, Wisconsin with experience helping many other
food co-ops through transitions, began serving as her assistant.

• November 6, 2023 The Council passed the charter of the GM Search Committee and began
populating it, including appointing Ashley Muscarella and Eva Schectman as Council
representatives. It also decided to hire Gallagher Flynn to help with the nationwide search, on
an a la carte basis.

• December 12, 2023 In response to objections from Elizabeth Jesdale to having been removed
from the GM Search Committee after she was elected to the Council, and an offer by Ashley
Muscarella to put her place on the committee up for election again, the Council decided to re-do

Page 31



the election for that seat in January. At this point, all the other committee members had been 
chosen.

• December 28, 2023 After Gallagher Flynn had withdrawn its offer to provide search assistance 
on an a la carte basis, the Council voted to accept their offer to provide search assistance on a 
fixed-fee basis. Thereafter, Council President Carl Etnier and Wynston Estes began meeting 
with Elena Spensley, Gallagher Flynn's lead on this project, to help GF fulfill its contract and be 
ready to work with the search committee. (Wynston coordinated HMC staff work on the 
committee, to avoid a conflict of interest for IGM Mullally, who was expressing interest in 
applying for the position.)

• January 16, 2024 The Council voted to extend Mary Mullally's contract as IGM until a new GM 
is hired. The Council also re-affirmed its choice of Ashley Muscarella to represent it on the 
search committee. Then, in a re-vote, it selected Elizabeth Jesdale for the position. The 
committee was now fully populated.

• January 22, 2024 After surveying members to find a time that worked for the most number of 
people, the GM Search Committee held its first meeting.

Composition of the committee
Last year’s Council created a nine-person committee, which is large for a search process. At this point, 
the committee has five active members.

Active members of the committee
Chair Paul Ohlson, member-owner.
Vice chair and note taker Alison Goyette, staff employee.
Wayne Fawbush, member-owner, and chair of the previous GM Search Committee, two decades ago.
Leo Ormiston, grocery manager.
Eva Schectman, Council member.

Committee members who resigned
Lynn Sykulsky, member owner, was unable to meet at a time that worked for many of the other 
committee members.
Charlotte Domino, staff employee, cited other responsibilities and the amount of time the committee 
would take.
Joelen Mulvaney, member-owner, cited dissatisfaction with the process.

Inactive committee member
Elizabeth Jesdale, Council member (and staff employee), has declined to attend meetings other than to 
briefly drop in to vote, and she has declined requests from the chair to meet with him or communicate 
by email.

Page 32



General Manager Posi�on Profile 

Company: Hunger Mountain Co-op 

Website:  

Loca�on: Montpelier, VT 

Job Title:  General Manager 

Reports To: Board of Directors 

About the company: 

Hunger Mountain Co-op in Montpelier, VT, has been in operation since 1960 and continues to 
grow its healthy impact on the Central Vermont communities – helping customers eat better, 
strengthening local agriculture, and supporting the community’s development. With over 
10,000 members, nearly 400 local vendors, and 180+ employees Hunger Mountain Co-op is 
committed to fulfilling its mission to act as a community and environmental steward providing 
sustainably produced and nutritious products year-round. 
 

Posi�on Summary: 

As delegated by the board of directors, the General Manager (GM) leads Co-op’s opera�ons, financial 
planning and management, marke�ng and community rela�ons, informa�on technology, staff, and 
membership development. The GM is the “face” of the organiza�on in the community. The GM 
embodies the values of the Co-op and works through staff to express them consistently with all 
employees, customers, members, and vendors. The GM acts and directs others within the Co-op’s 
bylaws, coopera�ve principles, and within the Board’s policies. The GM leads the Co-op’s Leadership 
Team. 

Du�es and Responsibili�es: 

BOARD RELATIONS 

• Understand the structure of policy governance and work within that structure to develop a 
posi�ve working rela�onship with the Board. Demonstrate openness to ques�ons, sugges�ons, 
and construc�ve comments from the board. 

• Request guidance from the board in the form of proposed policies as needed. Oversee and 
coordinate implementa�on of Board policies. 

• Provide the Board with financial and opera�onal reports as required. 
• Atend most council mee�ngs.  

STRATEGIC PLANNING, GENERAL MANAGEMENT AND OPERATIONS 

• Lead the development of the Co-op’s strategic plan keeping the board informed and seeking the 
necessary approvals. 

• Consistent with the strategic plan, develop and opera�onalize plans for the Co-op's future 
growth and development.  

Page 33



• Oversee the en�re store opera�ons. Ensure that the Co-op op�mizes the use of physical assets
and facili�es, and that the organiza�on is a model for outstanding customer service.

• Ensure effec�ve purchasing, marke�ng, outreach, adver�sing, and promo�on systems and/or
strategies.

• Develop and implement policies and procedures to meet and exceed the coopera�ve’s
objec�ves.

• Ensure that the retail store is clean, atrac�ve, and efficiently operated.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 

• Develop the Co-op’s annual store and capital budgets with the management team, manage
effec�vely within their constraints to meet or exceed budget goals. Communicate plan and seek
necessary approvals form Council in a �mely manner.

• Provide regular financial reports to the board and management to allow for appropriate decision
making.

• Ensure effec�ve budget development, management, control, and maintenance of all necessary
financial records.

• Nego�ate contracts and agreements on the coops behalf and ensure financial commitments are
met

• Oversee cash flow and approve capital disbursements

HUMAN RESOURCES 

• Supervise, evaluate, and develop the performance of direct reports, comple�ng performance
appraisals in a �mely manner. Review achievement of performance and service standards,
rewarding excellent performance and taking correc�ve ac�on as needed.

• Develop and maintain posi�ve rela�ons with staff, members, and vendors.
• Oversee the development and implementa�on of pay and benefit programs.
• Create and develop a work environment which encourages employee involvement in problem-

solving and policy development. Be accessible to employees and establish and maintain fair
grievance procedures.

• Ensure compliance with those all local, state, and federal regula�ons governing wages, hours,
working condi�ons and safety.

MEMBER ENGAGEMENT AND COMMUNITY RELATIONS 

• Obtain necessary input from shoppers and members about coopera�ve issues, products, and
services to ensure excep�onal customer service and sa�sfac�on.

• Ensure and maintain posi�ve member rela�ons.
• Oversee the development of ongoing coopera�ve and consumer goods-related educa�on

programs.
• Oversee the growth of the coopera�ve’s membership. Ensure that the coopera�ve offers

benefits and enhancements that en�ce community members to become members.
• Maintain a posi�ve coopera�ve profile in the local community and coopera�ve community.

CUSTOMER SERVICE AND SATISFACTION 
• Design, develop and maintain a store that is well-merchandised and customer friendly.

Page 34



• Evaluate and iden�fy customer service needs.
• Develop necessary employee training to ensure the Co-op provides outstanding customer

service to its members, customers, and vendors.
• Provide methods for staff, members, customers, and vendors to offer feedback on the Co-op

experience and report key indicators from these methods to the board and necessary
Commitee Chairs on a regular basis.

Skills, Abili�es and Qualifica�ons: 

• Strategic Thinking - iden�fy strategic opportuni�es and areas for improvement and develop
strategies to achieve success.

• Managing People - direct and mo�vate staff, par�cularly at management level.
• Financial Management- plan, develop, implement, and monitor budgets and adhere to cost and

margins.
• Business Planning and Opera�ons - plan, develop and implement systems to provide for efficient

and produc�ve store opera�ons.
• Professional Communica�on - demonstrate excellent verbal and writen communica�on skills, as

well as ac�ve listening skills. Must be able to read, analyze, and interpret general business
periodicals, professional journals, technical procedures, or governmental regula�ons; to author 
reports, business correspondence, and business plans; to effec�vely present informa�on and 
respond to ques�ons from Board members, employees, customers, and public. 

• Commitment to Coopera�ve Structure and Collabora�on - work well with others in a
coopera�ve environment where teamwork and constant communica�on are essen�al.

• Problem Solving - demonstrate excellent problem-solving skills.
• Customer service mindset – demonstrate commitment to excellent customer service.
• Accountability-set, uphold, and manage reasonable expecta�ons from BOD, managers,

employees, members, and customers and demonstrate follow through on commitments.

Educa�on and Experience: 

• Minimum of 5 years of grocery retail or related management experience.
• Knowledge of natural and conven�onal foods and the food industry highly desirable.
• Experience leading the profitable growth of all or part of an organiza�on
• Experience as the spokesperson for an organiza�on with a high community profile highly desirable.
• Knowledge and experience with coopera�ves, community development, marke�ng, membership

development, local supply networking, and union rela�ons highly desirable.
• Bachelor’s degree preferred.

Physical Demands: 

Primary func�ons require sufficient physical ability and mobility to work in an office se�ng; to stand or 
sit for prolonged periods of �me; to occasionally stoop, bend, kneel, reach. etc. Ability to li� to 20 lbs. 

Benefits and Perks: 

• Medical, Dental and Vision Insurance
• 401 Re�rement plan with up to 4% match
• Employee Gain Share program

Page 35



• Company-paid life insurance
• Paid training
• Employee discounts
• Flexible Spending Accounts
• Employee Assistance programs

Page 36



General Manager Search Committee Charter 

The General Manager (GM) Search Committee advises and makes recommendations to the 
Council regarding the hiring of a General Manager.  

The Council is solely responsible for deciding which candidate is offered the position and their 
compensation. 

The Committee is comprised of nine members and a staff member to provide operational 
support;  

Two Council members (chosen by the Council), 

Four Co-op member-owners (2 nominated by Co-op member-owners, drawn by Co-op staff 
from a pool of member-owner nominations and 2 appointed by the Council), 

One Co-op manager (chosen by management),  

Two Co-op non-management employees (nominated and elected by the employees). 

All committee members agree to maintain confidentiality and to treat fellow committee 
members with respect, courtesy and kindness. Any committee member who cannot follow 
these guidelines will be removed. Replacements will be sought in the same way the original 
committee members were established. 

The GM Search Committee Chair will keep the Council informed, providing meeting minutes 
and all committee recommendations in a timely manner.   

The committee will review applicants recommended by the recruiters to determine whether 
they should be interviewed. The committee will recommend to the Committee Chair, as soon as 
they are identified, all qualified applicants to move forward in the hiring process, until notified 
by the Council to pause or end their work.   

The Committee will move expeditiously and endeavor to provide a candidate for vote by the 
Council as soon as reasonably possible. 

Charter Approved: November 6, 2023 

Page 37



HMC 2024 COMMITTEES MEMO 

To: Council 

From: Eva Schectman for the Executive Committee 

Re: HMC 2024 Committees 

March 2024 

Council Committees (which can include Council members, employees and member-owners) meet to carry out 
work on the Council’s behalf, to help address core functions of the Council.  

The Core Functions of the Council are: 

Governance (see *G1, G1.1, G1.2 and G1.3) 

Member Outreach/Engagement (see G2, G2.1) 

Perpetuation (see G2.3) 

* G = Governance, see Council Governance Policies, January 2023, Governing Style, pages 5 & 6.

https://hungermountain.coop/wp-content/uploads/2023/01/2023-HMC-Governance-Policies.pdf

In the past, committees were formed without renewing/reviewing their charters regularly. Early in 2023 there 
were 12 committees, but even then, some of the core functions of the Council weren’t being addressed. 

As a matter of best practice, the Council started asking committees to renew their charters annually. Then, 
after the Council affirmed they wanted to make Council meetings more efficient, the idea of the limited 
standing committee model was introduced, to bring a more systematic approach to forming and maintaining 
committees.  

Most of the 2023 committees had not met for some months by the end of the 2023 Council year, due to staff 
and Council transitions and capacities, with these exceptions:  

(1) Executive Committee
(2) GM Search Committee (formed in November 2023)
(3) HMCCF (worked through 2023, then the 2024 work plan & charter ratified by the Council February

2024, with one or two Council seats open)

Consider this: 

Except for the three committees above, the Council forms committees with 2024 Council interest/engagement 
in mind and works towards addressing the core functions of the Council, building up to the limited standing 
committees of Governance, Member Outreach/Engagement and Perpetuation, that would include most of 
the committee work the Council had been working on in 2023. 

Page 38



Here’s one way to look at it/consider it: 

(4) the Dinner and Discussion Ad Hoc Committee can expand/build up to the work of the Member
Outreach/Engagement Committee, which would include Communication and planning the Annual Meeting.

(5) Interest in Council Development/Education could expand into the Perpetuation Committee which would
include Council Recruitment and the (Council election) Ballot(s).

(6) And interest in Bylaws, Governance Policies and Ends, Council Election Process could be the work of the
Governance Committee and would also include Council Self-Evaluation and Annual Retreat planning.

Or, to put it another way: 

(4) Member Outreach/Engagement = Dinner and Discussion + Communication + Annual Meeting

(5) Perpetuation = Council Development/Education + Council Recruitment + Ballots

(6) Governance = Bylaws + Governance Policies and Ends + Council Election Process + Council Self Evaluation +
Annual Retreat

Keeping in mind the Council’s continued interest, the work of (7) the Sustainability Committee and (8) the 
Justice, Equity, Diversity and Inclusion (JEDI) Committee – can be re-established after the Council hires a new 
General Manager, since the GM will be an integral part of both committees, both in what they offer in insight 
and in implementing committee/Council recommendations operationally. 

Next Steps: 

 Join Committees (2-4 Council members each)
 Continue ongoing work when applicable (see committees 1, 2 & 3 and Dinner & Discussion)
 Draft charters for new committees
 Bring charters to Council for ratification

Page 39



To: HMC Council 

From: Eva Schectman for the Dinner and Discussion Ad Hoc Committee 

Re: Dinner and Discussion Update 

March 2024 

At the February 13 Council Meeting, Council members were invited to bring their ideas forward for the 

discussion part of the evening. Elizabeth, among other ideas, offered the topic of resilience. 

At the meeting the Council asked Rowan Sherwood, the Community Relations Manager, to contact the 

Montpelier Senior Activity Center (MSAC) to find good dates in mid-May for the event. Friday, May 17 was the 

best date for MSAC and for Co-op staff, for setting up and cleaning up afterwards. Suggested time, dinner 5-

6pm and discussion 6-7pm. HMC Food Services will cater the event. Upon consideration resiliency resonated 

the most for a Dinner and Discussion topic this year. 

Lauren Antler and I worked on an introductory paragraph for the event: 

The communities of the Co-op and Central Vermont in general have faced enormous challenges in the past 

year. Last year's flood, air quality related to wildfires, a housing shortage, challenges to our downtown, 

challenges to our food systems. What is resiliency in a challenged environment? What would it look like for our 

communities to become more resilient and what is the Co-op's role in weaving that fabric?  

Join the Co-op Council for a dinner and discussion on ways the Co-op can build resiliency into the community’s 

future. 

About a week ago Katie Trautz, Montpelier Alive Executive Director and commission member of the 

Montpelier Commission for Recovery and Resilience https://www.montpelier-vt.org/1456/Montpelier-

Commission-for-Recovery-and-R  and https://www.montpelierstrong.org/ was featured as USA Today’s 

Woman of the Year for her flood recovery efforts. I thought she or other commission members might be just 

the folks to help facilitate Co-op member-owners to engage in the topic of resiliency, so I have reached out to 

Ben Doyle, the commission chair, to gauge the interest of a couple of commission members (there are 15!) in 

engaging with Co-op member-owners in a discussion on what the Co-op's role could be in weaving the 

community resilience fabric. 

Next Steps 

We are seeking one or two Council members to join this ad hoc committee* (Lauren won’t be available to 

help) to determine details, with Rowan Sherwood, which would include but not be limited to forming an 

agenda, guest facilitator/presenter bios and dinner menu – ideally settled by April 15 - and to work with the 

potential guest facilitators, to determine how best to engage member-owners in this topic.  

*See 2024 Committee Memo for ideas/information on the potential growth of this committee into the

Member Outreach/Engagement Committee)

Page 40

https://www.montpelier-vt.org/1456/Montpelier-Commission-for-Recovery-and-R
https://www.montpelier-vt.org/1456/Montpelier-Commission-for-Recovery-and-R
https://www.montpelierstrong.org/


Council Calendar 2024

date facilitator
monitoring 
report standing agenda items

January 9 Carl Etnier L9 Retreat Plan, Committees

Feb 13 Carl Etnier L4 Workplan, Renew Line of Credit, Annual Meeting, Dinner&Discussion 

March 12 Carl Etnier L5/L7 Q2 Financials

April 9 Carl Etnier L1/L3 Shopper Survey, Governance Budget

May 14 Carl Etnier L2 Employee Survey (HR/Operational)

June 11 Carl Etnier L5/L7 Q3 Financials, Business Plan Preview

July 9* Carl Etnier L6 Business Plan, Annual Meeting Agenda

September 10 Carl Etnier L5/L7 Year End Financial Statements, Annual Meeting Plan

October 8 Carl Etnier Ends Ends Discussion, Patronage Refund/Equity, HMCCF Grants, Award decision

November 12 Carl Etnier L8 Self-evaluation, Financial Audit/Review Report, CBLD Enrollment

December 10 Carl Etnier L5/L7
Welcome New Members, New Year Admin, Officer Election, Committees, Q1 
Financial Statements, Retreat Prep

events
NFCA Annual Meeting 16-March
Dinner & Discussion 17-May
*Council Meeting Break August
CCMA May 30 - June 1 https://ccma.coop
Informal Council Gathering? TBD
Annual Meeting TBD

Page 41

https://ccma.coop/

	Agenda
	Welcome
	Monitoring Report: L5/L7
	GM Search Committee
	2024 Committees
	Wrap Up



